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FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES NIGERIA LIMITED
Annual report and audited financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Report of the directors

The Directors present to members of the company, the annual report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2018,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is the manufacture and sale of crown corks and plastic products. The
Company is also invelved in the manufacturing and sales of glassware through its group activities,

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
| Revenue from contracts with customers 36,762,836 31,255,164 | 10,441,821 | 9,068,905
Profit before income tax 11,426,617 10,335,411 4,569,484 4,783,872
Profit for the year 7,023,777 7,130,719 | 3,202,020 3,318,779

APPROPRIATION OF PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

The Directors did not recommend payment of dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (31 December
2017: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors who held office during the year under review and at the date of this report are as
follows:

Mr. Nikolaos Mamoulis (Greek) - Chairman (appointed w.e.f 13 September 2018)
Mr. Darren Bennett-Voci (British) - Managing Director

(Bashorun) Adebisi Alli Adesanya (retired w.e.f 5 July 2018)

Chief Christopher Avielele (retired w.e.f 22 March 2018)

Mr. Haralambos (Harry) G David (Cypriot)

Mr. Emmanouil Fafalios (Greek) (resigned w.e.f 31 May 2018)

Mr. Shanker Venkada Dhanikonda (Indian)

(Bashorun) Adebisi Alli Adesanya and Chief Christopher Avielele retired after the last Annual General Meeting,
while Mr. Emmanouil Fafalios resigned after the last Annual General Meeting,

The Directors retiring by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association are Messrs. Darren Bennett-
Voci and Haralambos (Harry) G David. They being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with Section 258(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, the records of Directors'
attendance at board meetings during the year will be available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN:

a) Shares of the Company: According to the register kept for the purposes of Section 275 of the
Companies and Allied Matters Act, none of the directors held any shares in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 1 January 2018 and 31 December 2018,
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Report of the directors (continued)

b) Shares of the Subsidiary Company: The table below shows the interests of the directors in the issued
share eapital of Beta Glass Ple:

Number of shares as at =

- 31 December 2018 1 January 2018
Mr. Nikolaos Mamoulis (Greek) - =
Mr. Darren Bennett-Voci (British) - "
(Bashorun) Adebisi Alli Adesanya 579,444 639,685

Retired w.e.f 5 July 2018)

Chief Chrisopher Avielele 27,474 27,474
(Retired w.e.f 22 March 2018)
Mr. Haralambos (Harry) G David (Cypriot) 25,437 25,437
Mr. Emmanouil Fafalios (Greek) B -
(Resigned w.e.f 31 May 2018) L
Mr. Shanker Venkada Dhanikonda (Indian) . =

CONTRACTS
None of the directors has notified the Company for the purpose of Section 277 of the Companies and Allied

Matters Act, of any disclosable interests in contracts involving the Company either as at 31 December 2018 or
the date of this report.

SHAREHOLDING

According to the register of members at 31 December 2018, the following shareholders of the company held
more than 10% of the issued share capital of the company:

Shareholder Number of Percentage
shares held
— Units %
| Frigoinvest Holdings B.V Netherlands 332,373,932 76.03
Nigerian Bottling Company Limited 104,491,862 23.90

DISTRIBUTION OF COMPANY'S PRODUCTS

The Company's products are manufactured mainly to customers’ specifications, Hence, distributors are not
involved in the company’s value chain.

ACQUISITION OF OWN SHARES
The Company did not acquire its own shares during the year under review.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In the opinion of the directors, the market value of the Company's property, plant and equipment is not less
than the value disclosed in the finaneial statements.
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Report of the directors (continued)
EMPLOYMENT AND EMPLOYEE MATTERS
EMPLOYMENT OF DISABLED PERSONS

It is the Company's policy not to discriminate against disabled persons hence, full and fair consideration is
given to applications received from them with regard to each applicant’s particular aptitudes and abilities.

HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE OF EMPLOYEES

Free medical treatment is given to all employees in well-equipped and professionally manned in-house clinies,
which exists in the Company’s and its subsidiary’s operational locations. Cases requiring more intensive
medical care are referred to the nearest reputable hospitals whose services is retained by the Company. Where,
necessary, protective clothing and devices are provided for employees.

Free meals of high nutritional value are served at the Company’s canteens, whilst transportation facilities to
and from employees places of work is provided by the Company.,

Retirement benefit scheme is operated for all qualified employees of the Company in accordance with the
Pensions Reform Act, 2004 as amended,

EMPLOYEES’ INVOLVEMENT AND TRAINING
In keeping with the Company’s policy, which enhances industrial peace and harmony, employees are consulted

and involved in decisions that affect their current jobs or future prospects. Also Training opportunities are
provided both locally and abroad.

DISCONTINUATION OF GRATUITY SCHEME

The group successfully concluded its discussions with the various workers unions to discontinue the gratuity
scheme, Having received the nod of the unions, total gratuity liability was paid to the beneficiaries before 31
December 2018, Accordingly, the gratuity scheme has been abolished.

AUDITORS

Messrs., PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their willingness to continue in office as auditors of the
Company in accordance with Section 357(2) of the Companies and Allied Matters Act.

BEY ORDER OF THE BOARD

:‘}/_AQ?S."O_P.(I._/};-J“‘\

BOLA ADEBISI (MS)
Company Secretary

IDDO HOUSE, IDDO, LAGOS

Dated: 21 March 2019



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED
Statement of directors’ responsibilities
For the year ended 31 December 2018

The Companies and Allied Matters Act requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each
financial year that give a true and fair view of the state of financial affairs of the company at the end of the
year and of its profit or loss. This responsibility includes:

a. ensuring that the company keeps proper accounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the
financial position of the company and comply with the requirements of the Companies and Allied
Matters Act;

b. designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; and

e. preparing the company's financial statements using suitable accounting policies supported by reasonable
and prudent judgements and estimates, that are consistently applied.

The directors accept responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using
appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and egtimates, in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and
Allied Matters Act.

The directors are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
financial affairs of the company and of its profit or loss. The directors further accept responsibility for the
maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the preparation of financial statements, as
well as adequate systems of internal fi inaneial control.

as come to the attention of the directors to indicate that the company will not remain a going
r at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

NOF Bt Ao

\

Mr. N@mlnus Mamoulis Mr. Darren Bennett-Voci
Chairman Managing Director
21 March 2019 21 March 2019

FRC/2016 JIODN/00000015783
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Independent auditor’s report
To the Members of Frigoglass Industries (Nigeria) Limited

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
and separate financial position of Frigoglass Industries (Nigeria) Limited (“the company”) and its subsidiaries
(together "the group”) as at 31 December 2018, and of their consolidated and separate financial performance
and their eonsolidated and separate cash flows for the year then ended in aceordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act and the Financial
Reporting Council of Nigeria Act,

What we have audited

Frigoglass Industries (Nigeria) Limited’s consolidated and separate financial statements comprise:
+ the consolidated and separate statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018;

 the consolidated and separate statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then
ended,

= the conzolidated and separate statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
+ the consolidated and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

# the notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies,

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in aceordance with International Standards on Auditing (18As). Our responsibilities

under those standards are further deseribed in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
and separate financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the Report of the
directors, Statement of directors’ responsibilities, Consolidated and separate statements of value added, and
Consolidated and separate five-year financial summary, but does not include the consolidated and separate
finaneial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated and separate finaneial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assuranece conclusion thereon.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Chartered Accountants, Landmark Towers, 58 Water Corporation Read, Victoria
Island, Lagos, Nigeria
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[n eonnection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged with governance for the consolidated
and separate financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated and separate financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of
the Companies and Allied Matters Act, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated and separate financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's finaneial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements
Our ebjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated and separate financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collugion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the cireumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

« FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the direetors.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of directors’ use of the going concern basis of aceounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast signifieant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conelude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated and separate financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may eause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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+ Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate financial
statements, ineluding the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

«  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, ineluding any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.,

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The Companies and Allied Matters Act requires that in earrying out our audit we consider and report to you on
the following matters. We confirm that:

i) we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

i) the company has kept proper books of nceount, so far as appears from our examination of those books and
returns adequate for our audit have been received from branches not visited by us;

iii) the company's statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are in agreement with the books of account.

{HETTTUTE OF CHARTENLL
AECHUMVAHTA DF HILEnI &
=i

e

For: PricewaterhouseCoopers 36 April 2019

Chartered Accountants
Lagos, Nigeria

Engagement Partner: Edafe Erhie
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000001143



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED
Annual report nnd nudited finnncinl stntements
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Consolidated and sepornte sintement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Revenue from contracts with cusiomers

Cost of snles
Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Selling and diztribution expenges

Mot impairment gain / (loss)
Other Income

Operating profit
Nt forelgn exchonge gain

Finance incoma
Finnnee cost

Finance income - net
Profit before Income tnx
Ineome 1ag expenss

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on employee benefit obligation
Deferred tax (charged) /eredit on remensurement gain/(loss) on

employee benefit obligation

Other comprehensive income/ (expenses) for the year-net

of inx

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

— Owners of the parent
= Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity

holders of the company

Basic and diluted EPS (Maira)

Group Company
A1 December g1 December 31 December 31 December
amll ET EGIE ETE
Note MN'aoo N'ooo N'ooo N'Boin
5 46,762,836 31,255,164 10,441,821 9,068,905
& 27 A1 10 ayaso922)  (7580,720) (6412,527)
9,241,733 7,904,242 #,861,002 2,656,378
6 (z.aa5.024)  (L942287) (7o2,236) (549,150)
6 (B1,161) (o7,702) - -
17.2 (13,180) . . g
H 1,420,020 B4l 664 500,012 533,072
] 2,66 2,641,191
g 1,014,610 2,017,178 HHo, 885 1,673,060
10 2,506,474 1,818,730 2,019,437 1,524, /a6
10 {324,845) {213,335) (990,604) _ (1,0/4,024)
o 2,181,629 1,605,404 1,019,833 460,621
11,426,617 10,335,411 4,569,484 4,783,872
uo__(usozBqo)  (aoq601)  (14,367464)  (1465,003)
Z9ZAZZZ o ZA30739 3,202,030 3418770
oo - 58,007 . (5,262)
23 = (17,594} = 1,604
= 41,403 - (1.578)
LORAIZT ZA72ie2 3203090 335201,
I‘i.‘]‘]?.ﬁil“ 5,586,283 3,202,020 J:315201
1,920,129 1,585,819 r =
7,923,777 7172133 4,303,030 4,315,201
12 18,12 16,41 z.a8 7.59

The notes on pages 14 to 48 are an integral part of these financial statoments,




FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 Decembor 2018

Axsets

Non:current nsscis
Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiary
Intangible assets

Total non-¢urrent asscis

Current nsscts
Inventories

Trade and other recelvables
Cash in hand and at bank

Total current nsscts
Total assets

Liabilities

Non-current linbilities
Employee benefit obligation
Deferred tax linbilities

Total non-current linbilitics

Current linbilities
Borrowings

Trade and other payables
Current income tax labilities

Total current linbilities
Total labilitics

I!»uuit;;l

Ordinary share capital
Share premium

Other reserves
Retained earnings

Non controlling interest
Total equity

Taotal e
The nnL
Thcd ‘n
signe

and liabilities
|

"
Mr. Nikolpnd Mamoulis
Chairma

Group Company
41 Deceml 31D 1 41 December 31 December
=018 2017 =018 2017
Naote N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
15 19,513,697 13,301,319 1,995,604 1,433,957
13 - . 1,786,130 1,786,130
14 10,705 10,086 = m
19,524,492 13,411,405 781,824  a020,087
16 9,293,338 8,593,101 3,053,599 3,566,886
17 31,853,276 26,912,163 23,851,182 18,316,876
18 10,121,137 10,274,146 1,248,330 3,343,179
ﬁl.iﬁz,zﬁl. gﬁﬂaﬂlﬁ 28,153,120 25,226,551
79,793,343 59,080,815 31,934,944 28,447,028
] T 3;931|353 i 35'7:133
23 572,707 3,746,193 2,844,054 2,307,370
5:572,797 6,678,056 2,844,054 2 of
21 1,624,630 1,040,457 526,045 284,504
19 13,032,048 6,402,445 6,858,476 6,806,489
20 2,648,604 4,137,170 1,084,463 1,193,580
16,705,281 11,582,072 8,468,089 8,972,603
22,298,078 18,260,128 11,314,097 11,087,141
24 218,501 218,591 =18,501 218,50
16,3530 16,330 16,330 16,350
2,429,042 2,429,042 - -
34,567,620 28,501,873 20,386,086 17,184,066
7282492 31,256,736 20,621,907 17,419,887
ulzﬂllﬁza 9,572,451 . .
48,514,165 40,820,687 20,621,007 17,419,887
70,792,244 50,089,815 1 a8 azf

ages 14 to 42 are an integral part of these financial statements,

litmm ta on paged o to 42 were approved and authorised for lssue by the board of directors on 21 March 2019 and were

NS Y A

Mr. Darren Benneti-Voci

Managing Director

FRC/2016/10DN/oo000015783

o=

MeTianikondn Shanker
Chief Financial Officer
FRC/zo13/ANAN/oooonooz336
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FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED
Annual report and nudited finuncial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Consolidated and separate statement of cash flows

Cash generated from / (used in) operations
Tax paid
Employee retirement benefits obligation pa id

Net cash generated from / (used in)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Pureliase of intangible asset

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest received

Net eash (used in)/generated from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Pracecds from short term borrowings
Repayment of term borrowing

interest paid

Dividend paid

Statute barred dividend returned

Net ensh generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash
eguivalents
the year

Cash and eash equivalents at the end of
the year

Note

25
20
a2

15
14
25
10

21
21
10

18

Group Company
31 31 11 31
December December December December
zo18 2017 2018 2017
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
12,660,800 4,283,580 (1,305621) 2,137,236
(3,586,526) (1,421,465)  (Bon307)  (223,253)
2 6 181,1 (256,297) (10,509)
6,087,620 2,680,980 (2.453,225) 1,905,474
(8,827,4901) (3020531  (922,820)  (350,052)
(3.077) = = =
43,910 101,422 18,921 10,178
2,500 1,818 2,01 1,52 6
6,290,18 2,000,306 1,11 8 1,184,072
1,624,630 1,046,457 526,045 283,594
(1,046,457 = (283,594) =
(324,845) (z:13,335)  (999,604) (1,054,925)
(203,922) {(186,770) - =
140 46,570 - -
49,546 692,922 (757,153) (771,331
(153,009) 1,373,542 (2,094,840) 2,316,215
10,274,146 8,900,604  3,343.179 1,026,064
10,121,137 10,274,146 1,248,339 3,343,179

The notes on pages 14 to 48 are an integral part of these financinl statements,

13



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Motes to the financlal statoments (eontinued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2.4

2.1.1

.13

General iInformation

Frigoglass Industries (Migeria) Limited was incorporated on 21 April 1005 and it Is engaged in the manufacturing of crown corla, plostle erates and
commercial refrigeration produets, The Company and its subsidiary - Bota Glasa Ple are together referred to as “The Group”,

Summary of significant aceounting policles

Basls of preparation

The prineipal nceounting policles adopted in the preparation of these financinl statements are sot out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the yeara preaented, unleas otherwise stated,

‘The financal statementa comprise the statement of proft or loss and other comprehenalve income, the statement of financial position, the statement of
changes in equity, the statemant of eadh Mow and the notes to the Ananeial statements,

The finanelnl statements are presented in Nalra, which 1s the Group's presentation eurrency. The figures shown In the financial statements are stated
in thouaanda of Nalrn except where stated otherwise,

The preparation of finanecial statemants in eonformity with IFRS requires the uge of certain eritieal accounting estimates, It also requires management
to exorcise ita judgment in the process of applying the Group's aceounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a signifiennt Impaet on the
finanelnl statements in the perlod the nssumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the
Group's finanelal statements thorefore present the financinl position and results fairly. The arean involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity,
or arens where aasumptions and estimates aro gignificant to the finaneinl statements, nre disclosed in Note 4,

The finaneinl statements wers autharised for ssue by the Board of Directors on 21 of March, 2019,
The financial statementa have been prepared using o rounding level of Niooo,

Going coneern

The finanelnl statements have been prepaced in neeordanee with the golng conoern prineiple under the historieal cost conventlon,
Changes in nocounting policy and disclosure
i) New standards, amendmonts and interpretations adopted by the Group for the first time

The follewing standards have been ndopted by the Group for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2018, The nature and
effect of changes a4 8 result of adoption of these new standards aro deseribed below:

Sovernl other amendments and interprotations apply for the first time in 2018, but they do not have an impact on the group's financial statemanta, The
Group has not early adopted any standards, interpretations or amendmants that have been issued, but are not yet efiective,

{1} IFRS g Financial Instruments replaces 1AS 29 Finnnclal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for nnnual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2018, bringing togothor all thres aspects of the accounting for financial instruments: classification and measurement; impalement;
and hedge aceaunting. The new impairment model requires the recognition of impalrment provisions based on expected credit losses (ECL) rather
than only incurred eredit losses o8 is the case under 1A 39, The Group applicd TFRE 9 prospectively, with an Initial application date of 1 January
2018, The Group has not restated the comparative informatlon, which continues to be roported under TAS 39. Difforences arlaing from the adoption of
IFRS 9 have been recognised directly in retained sarnings and other ecomponents of equity, The effect of adopting IFRS g an at 1.Janunry 2018 was, 08
follows;

Group Company

Adjustment o1 January 2o18
Anget Mooo Moo
Teade receivable (bl {7,120} =
Staf recelvable (h) (5,379 =
Relnted party receivables (3] (30.724) -
Totnl Assot (52,232) &
Linbilities
Daforred Tax labilities (e} (16, 716) =
Totnl Linbilites {i6,7i16) =
Adjustment to Equity
Retained Earnings {n), (b}, (e} 16 =

The nature of adjustment are deseribed below:

{(n) Clossification and measurement

Under 1FRS g, debt instrumenta aro subsequently measured ot falr value through profit or loss, amartised cost, or fair value through OCL The
elaasifieation ls based on twe eriteria: tho Company's businens model for mannging the assets; and whether the instruments’ contragtual cash flows
rapresent "solely payments of princlpal and interest’ on the principal amount outstanding. The nsseasment of the Group's business model was made as
of the date of initial appliention, 1 Janunry 2018, The nssessment of whether contractual cash flows on debt instruments are solely comprised of
prineipal and interest was made baged on the facts and clreumstances os ot the Initiol recognition of the assets,
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2,12 Changes in aceounting policy and disclosure {(continued)

‘The clnssification and mensurement requirements of IFRS g did not have o significant impoet to the Groop. The Group continued measuring ot fair
valiie all finnneinl nasets previously held at fair value under IAS 39, Trade receivables , Advances to staff and loan to related parties s at 31 Decomber
a017 are held to eollvel eontractunl enah Mows nnd glve rise to ensh flows representing solely paymenta of principal and intereat, These are olassified
and mensured ax Debt instrumoents at amortized cost boginning 1 January 2018,

In summary, upon the adoption of IFRS g, the Group had the following required or elected reclassifications as at 1 January 2018,

arau IS 8 mensurement eatagory

=" Fair valuz
through Falr value
profiter  Amortised throtgh
loss gost ocl

AR 30 measureiment eategory HEG0 HOBO HOOD HOOE

Laani and Fecelvibles

Trade recelvalbiles® G708 10,874

Advaiees o alall™ 167,262 157,889

Jltnen-ivnhlu from reloted portles® 18,061,451 18,008,707

Campany i IFS 8 mensursment eatagary
thraugh Fair valus
profit ar Amaortised through
lass cost ocl

IAS 39 mensurement category iﬂq HED Nﬂ OEEE_

Lonns and receivables

Trode receivablos® 658,911 68011

Advanoes ta staff* 24,061 24,981

Recelvables from related parties® 17,437,420 17,437,420

* The change in earrying amount i o result of additional impairment allowance, See details on impairment below.

(b} Impadrment of financial asset

The ndoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Group's accounting for impairment losses for financial assets by replacing IAS 39's incurred
losa npproach with o forward-looking expected eredit loas (ECL) nppronch. IFRS 9 requires the Group to recognise an allowanee for ECLs for all debt
Instruments not held at falr valug through profit ar loss and contract assets,

Upon adoption of IFRS 9, the Group recognised additional impalrment on the Group's Trade recelvables, Staff loan and receivables from reluted
pnﬂB[" of M7,120,000, M5,370,000 and M39,724,000, respectively, which reaulted in o decrense in Retained earnings by M52,232,000 as at 1 January
2018,

Set out below I8 the reconellintion of the ending impairment allowances in accordance with IAS 39 to the opening loss

allownnees determined (n necordnnce with 1FRS g:

Allgwanes far
Impairment
under IAS 30 an ECL undar
at 31 December |Remeasure |IFRS § as at 1
|Group |2017 mant January 2018
HO0O HDDO HOOO
Loans and recelvables under IAS 38/Financial assets at amortised cost under IFRS 8§ 25,600 82,292 77 041
Allowanoe for
impairmant
under IAS 39 as ECL under
at 31 December |Remeasure |IFRS 8 as ot 1
|company |2017 mani lanuary 2018
HOOD HOOD HOOD
Loans and recelvables under 1AS 39/Financlal assets at amortised cost under IFRS 8 7,037 . 7 0947




FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

HMotes to the financlal statemoents (ontinued)
Tar the year ended 51 December 2oi8

2.1.2 Changes in aecounting polley and disclosure {(continued)

(¢ ) Other adjustments

In nddition te the adjustments deseribed above, other item such as doforred tax waa adjusted to retained earnings ns necessary upon adoption of TFRS
g as at LJanuary 2018,

{il) IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers: The IASH has issued o new standard for the recognition of revenue, This replaces TAG
18 which eovers contracts for goods and services and 1A 11 which covers congtruetion contracts. The new stundard |s based on the principle that
revenue i recoghised when control of o good or service transfers to a customoer, The standard permita either o full retrospeetive or 0 modified
retrospootive approach for the adoption. Presentation of contract assets and contract linbilities in the Statement of Financial Position = IFRS 15
requires sepnrate presentation of contract assets and contract linbilitles in the Statement of of Financial Position,

IFRS 15 wan adopted for the first time in 2018 using modified restropective method of ndoption with the date of initial application of 1 January 2018,
The cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 14 is recognized at the date of initial application ns an ndjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings, Therefore, the comparative Informatlon was not restated and gontinues to be roported under TAS 11, TAS 18 and related Interpretations,

Thera it no material quantitative ehanges bused on the adoption of IFRS 15 to the Group's revenue but the qualitative diselosures have been updated in
line with application of IFRS 15,
{l3) New standards, amendments, and interprotations issued but not yet adopted by the group

A numbor of new standards, smendments to standards and interproetations are effective for annual perioda beginning after 1.January 2009 and heyond,
and have niat been applied in preparing these finaneial statements. The Group intends to adopt these new and amended standards and interprotations,
if npplicable, when they become effective, The new and amended standards and interpretations that are lssued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
{saunnee of the group’s financinl statements are disclosed below,

IFRS 16 Loases

IFRS 16 waa lssued (n Jonuoary 2016 and it replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Dotermining whether an Arrangement containg o Lease, B1C<15 Operating
Leases-Incontives and 81C-27 Evaluating the Substanee of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of o Lease, IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the
recognition, measarement, presentation and diselosure of leases and requires lessees to nccount for all leases under o single on-balance sheet model
similar to the aceounting for finance leases under LAS 17, The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees = lended of Towsvalue' naseta
(0., personal computers) and ahort=term lenses (Le,, lenses with a lease term of 12 months or less), At the commencemaent date of o lease, a lesseo will
recognize o lHability to make lease paymenta (i.e., the lease Hability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease
term (L., the right-of-use nsset), Lessees will be required to separatoly recognise the interest expense on the lense linbility and the deprecintion
axponie on the Fight-of-use naget.

Leaaeed will be also required to remensure the lease lability upon the scourrenco of cortain eventa (a.0., o change in the lease term, a ehange in future
lonno paymants resulting from o ehange in an index or rate used to determine those payments), The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the
remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the sight-of-uae asset.

Lasor aceaunting under IFRS 16 {a substantinlly unchanged from today's accounting under 1AS 17, Lessors will cantinue to clagsify all leases using the
snma classifieation prineiple az in TAS 17 and distinguiah between two types of lenses: operating and finance lenses. 1FRS 16, which Is effective for
annuil perlods beginning on ar after 1 Janunry 2019, requires leasees and leasord to make more extensive disclosures than under 1AS 17.

The Group hos long term lease of 4 years and impact of adoption of the standard on financial position as at December 2018 ir statod below:

Aunot: N'ooo
Right on usa of neeot p6,284

Linbility:

Lease Liability o6,284

16
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2.1.2 Changes in necounting policy and diselosure (continued)
{b) New standards, namendments, nnd interpretations issued but not yet ndopted by the group

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncortainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation nddresses the nccounting for incone taxes when tax tieatmenta {nvolve uneertalnty that affects the application of TAS 12 and does
not apply to taxes or lovies outslde the scope of TAS 12, nor does it specifically include roquirementa relating to Intereat and pennltles nssoclated with
uncerinin tax trentments, The Interprotation apeeifically addresses the following:

1. Whether an entity conslders uncertain tax treatments separately

. The azsumptiond an entity makes nbout the examinntion of tax treatments by taxation authoritiea

3. How nn entlty determines taxable profit / (tax lais), tis bages, unused tix losses, unused tax eredits and tax rates

4. Mow an ontity congiders ehanges in facts and cireumstances

An antity had to determine whether to consider cach uncertain tax troatment separately or together with one or more other uncertain tox trentments.
The approach that better predieta the resolution of the uncertainty should be followed, The interprotation is affeetive for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019, but certain transition réllefs nre nvallable. The Company will upply the interpretation from its offectiva date,
Sinee the Company aperates in n complex multinational tax environment, applying the Interpretation may affect fts financial statements. In addition,
the Company may neod ta establish processes and procedures to obtain information that is necessary to apply the Interpretation on o timely basia,

Amendments to IFRS 9; Prepayment Fentures with Negative Compensation

Unidler IFRS g, o debt instrument can be mensured at amortized cost or at falr value through other comprehensive income, provided that the
gontractual eaah flows are 'solely payments of principal and interest on the principal ameunt eutatanding’ (the SPPI eriterion) and the inatrument ia
held within the appraprinte business model for that elasaifieation. The amendments to IFRS g clarify that o finanvial asset pagses the SPPI eriterion
regardleas of the event or circumstance that causes the early termination of the contraet and lrvespeetive of which porty pays or recelves reasonable
campundation for the early termination of the contract,

The amendmenta should be applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted, These amendments have
no impact on the Company's finaneial statementa,

Annual Improvements zo1§-2o17 Cyele (lssued in December zo17)

IAS 12 Income Taxes
The amendiments elarlfy that the Income tax consequences of dividends are linked more direetly to past trananetions or events that generated
digtributable profits than to disteibutiona to ewners. Therefore, an entity recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according te where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events,
An entity npplies those samendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Janunry 2019, with early npplication permitted. When an
entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income tax consequences of dividends reeognised on or after the beginning of the earlicat
gomparative period. Since the Company's current practice is in line with these amendments, the Company do not expeat any effect on its financial
statements.
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2.1.2

L=

(w)

)

(c)

Changes in aceounting poliey nnd disclosure (continued)

(b) New standards, amendments, and interpretations lssued but not yet ndopted by the group (continued)

TAS 23 Borrowing Costs:
The amendments clarify tht an entity treats ns part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a
qualifying asset when substantially all of the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

An entity npplies those amendments to borrowing costs Incurred on or after the beginning of the annual reporting period in
whieh the entity first applies those nmendments, An entity applies those amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019, with early applieation permitted. The company eurrently has no borrowing made to develop a qualifylng
nsset.

There are no other IFRS: or IFRIC interpretationa that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the current or future reporting period and on foreseeable future transactions,

Consolidation

Subgidiaries

Subaldiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control, The group controls an entity when
the group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully eonsolldated from the date in which control is transferred to the
group, They nre deconsolidated from the date that eontrol ceases, Investments in subsidiaries are recognised at cost less
impairment,

Intercompuny transactions, balanees and unrealised gaing on trananetions bebween group companies are eliminated, Unrealised
loases are nlso eliminnted. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with group's
aceoifiting policles,

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change af control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not resull in loss of control are aceounted for a8 equity transactions — that is,
as trananctions with the owners in their cnpacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrving value of net nssets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity,

Dizpozal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases Lo have control any retained interest in the entity ls remensured to ita falr value ot the date when control
ia lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit of loss, The fair value is the initial earrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are nceounted for s if the group had
directly disposed of the related azseis of liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised In other comprehenalve
income are reclnssified to profit or loss,

Foreign currency translation

{a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the group's entities nre mensured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ('the functional curreney’). The funetional currency and presentation
currency of the Group is the Nigerian naira (N).

(b)) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing ot the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gaing and losses resulting from the settlement of forelgn eurrency trananctions and from the
translation at exchange rates of monetary assets and linbilities denominated in currencies other than an entities’ funetional
currency nre recognized in the foreign exchange gain in profit or loss.
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.4

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment Is stated at historical cost less deprecintion, Historieal cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items,

Subscquent expenditures are included in the asset's earrying amount of are recognised a8 o geparate asset, ns appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits nssociated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the ftem can be
measured reliably, The carrying amount of the replaced part is derccognised. All other repair and maintenanee costs are charged
to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred,

Depreciation of assets is caleulnted using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, ns follows:

Buildings 2%

Plant and machinery:

= Furnnces 14%

= Factory equipment and tools 15%

- Quarry equipment and machinery 20%
= Glass molds 50%

= Other plant and machinery 10%

Maotor vehicles 20%

Furnitute, Fittings and equipment;

= Office and house eauinment 13%
- Household furniture and fittings 20%
= Computer equipment 25%

“The nssets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed ond adjusted if npproprinte, ot the end of ench reporting date.
Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment

In the cose where an asset's earrying amount i8 greater than it estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immedintely to
ita recoverable amount nnd the difference (impairment loss) is recorded ag expense in profit or loss,

Gaina and losses on disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined by the differenee between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, These gnins and losses are included in profit or loss,

Borrowing cost

General and apeclile borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that neecasarily take o substantiol period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such a time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale, There have been no
qualifying nssets in both periods presented in the financial statements,

All other barrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they are incurred,
Intnngible nssets

Computer software

Caplialized software licenses are acquired and carried at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization, losg any accumulated
impairment. They are amortlzed using the straight-line method over five (5) years. Computer software maintenanee costs are
recognized as expenses in the profit or loss as incurred,

Costa associnted with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Impairment of non-financial asacis

Azsets that have an indefinite useful life not subject to nmortisation are tested nnnunlly for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes In eircumstanees indiente that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the agset's earrying amount exceeds itz
recoverable amount, The recoverable nmount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, asscts are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(eash=generating units).
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2.7
2.7.1
2.7.1.1

2.7.0.2

2.7.1.3

&.7.1.4

2.7
2.7.1.5

2.7.1.6

2.7.1.7

Finaneial Instruments
Initinl recognition and subsequent measurement - Poliey prior to ndoption of IFRS 9
Financinl asscls

Finanelal nssets nre recognized when the Group or Company becomes o party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Classifieation
Management determines the classification of ita finaneial nssets ot initial recognition,

The Group elnssifies its financinl assets as loana and recelvables. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
finaneial assets were nequired. Management determines the elassifieation of its financinl assets at initial recognition and re-
evoluates this designation at every reporting date.

The Group did not own any finaneial assets that can be elassified as fair value through profit and loss or available-for-sale
finaneial assets during the perloda presented in these financial statements,

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non=derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
muarket. They are included in current nssets, except for maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date, which are
elnasified ns non=current assets. Loans and recelvables comprise trade and other receivables, loans to subsidinries and cash and
eash equivalents In the statement of finaneial position,

Recognition nnd mensurement

Loans nnd receivables are initially recognlsed ot falr value, subsequently they are carried at amortised cost using the effective
intereat method.

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at cach reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financlal asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. A finaneinl asset or o group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is

abjective evidence of impairment ag a result of an event that oceurred after the initinl recognition of the asset and that loss event
has an impaet on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of finaneinl nssets that ean be relinbly estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtor is experiencing finaneial difficulty, default in interest or
principal payments, or the probability that they will enter bankruptey nnd where there is an indication of a decreage in the
eatimated future ensh flows,

For loans and recelvables, the nmount of the loss is measured ag the difference between the carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows, The earrying amount is reduced and the logs |8 recognlsed in profit or loss,

If in o subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
oeeurring after the impairment was recognised (such ns an improvement in the debtor's eredit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment logs is recognised in profit or loss,

Financial linbilities

Finaneial liabilities are ot nmortized cost. This include trade and other payables and bank overdraits,

Recognition and measurement

Trade payables are initially recognized at the amount required to be paid, less, when material, a discount to reduce the payables
to fair value. Subsequently, trade payables are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Bank debts are reeognized initinlly nt fair value, net of any transaction costs ineurred, and subsequently at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, These are classified ns current linbilities if payment is due within twelve months, Otherwise, they
are presented ns non-current liabilities,

o
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2.7.1.8

2.7.1,0

a.7.2

27,21

2.7.2.2

2.7.2.3

Derecognition of finonecinl instruments

Finanelal nssets and liabilities are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investmenta or settle obligations
have expired or have been transferred and the Company haa tranaferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership,

Offzetting finaneial instruments

Finaneial agsets and labilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforeeable right to offset the recognised amounts and there s an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the lability simultaneously, The legally enforeenble right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforeeable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the company or the counierparty,

Financinl instruments — initial recognition and subsequent measurement - Policy subsequent to 1 January
2018

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to o finaneinl asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition, elassifiention and measurement

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provislona of the instrument.

Finaneinl assets are elassified at initlal recognition ns, nmortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCT),
and fair value through profit or loss.

The classifieation of finaneial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow eharactorlsties
and the Group's business model for managing them, With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group Initially measures a financinl asset
at its fair value plus, in the ease of  financlal asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction eosta. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15, Refer to the accounting policies on revenue from contracts with eustomers,
In order for o financinl asset to be classified and measured ot amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to
cash flowa that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)" on the principal amount outstanding. This nssessment is
referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level,

The Group's business model for managing finaneinl assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash fNlows, selling the financial
nusets, or both,

Subsequent mensurement
For purpoges of subsequent measurement, finaneinl nssets are classified in four categories:
&, Finnneial nssets ot amortised cost (debt instruments)

b, Finanelal asseta at fair value through OCI with recyeling of eumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)
¢. Finaneial assets designated at falr value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments)

d, Financinl nasets ot fair value through profit ot losa
The Group's finaneial assels includes finaneinl nssets at nmortised cost.
Financial nssets nt amortised cost (debt instruments)

Tha Group measures financial nssets ot amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a1, The financial asset is held within a business model with The objective to hold financinl assets in order to colleet contractual
cash flowa and

. The conteactual terma of the financinl asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of prineipal
and interest on the principal amount ouistanding

Finanelal nasets nt nmortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective Interest (EIR) method and are subject to
impairment. Galna and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset 8 derecognised, modifled or impaired,

The Group's financlal nssets ot amortised cost includes trade receivables, staff advances and recelvables from related partles,
The Group did not own any financial assets that ean be elasalfied as falr value through profit and loss or held for trading
financlal nascts during the periods presented in these financial statements,

al
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2.7

2.7.2.4

2.7.2.5

3.7.2.6

=.7.2.7

2.7.0.8

Finaneinl instrument (continued)

Derecognition
A finaneinl asset (or, where applicable, a part of a finaneial asset or part of 1 group of similar finanelal assets) ls primarily
derecognised (l.e., removed from the Company's statement of finaneial position) when:

{n) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset hove expired OR

(1) The Group haa tranaferred its rights to recelve cash flows from the asset or has nssumed an obligation to pay the received
cnsh flows in full without material delay to a third party under o ‘pass=through’ arrnngement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assel, or (1) the Group has neither tranaferred nor retalned
subatantially all the risks and rewards of the nsset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive eash flows from an asset of has entered into 4 pass-through arrangement, it
eviluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the riaks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the nsset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of {18 continuing invelvement, In that ease, the Group also recognises an nssoclated lability, The
transferred nsset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company
has retalned,

Continuing involvement that tnkes the form of n gunrantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
earrying amount of the asaet and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could he required to repay,

Write-offs

Thi: Group's nceounting policy under IFRS g remains the same as it was under 1AS 39. Finaneial nssets are written off either
partially or in their entivety only when the Group has stopped pursuing the recovery. If the amount to be written off Is greater
than the aceumulated loss allowanee, the difference is first treated ag an addition to the allowanee that is then applied against
the gross earrying nmount. Any subsequent recoveries are eredited to profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there (s a
legally enforeeable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the Hability simultnneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty,

Trade recelvables

Trnde receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment for trade receivables is established when there {s objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all the amounts due according to the orlginal terma of the recelvables, Trade
receivabke is impaired using a provision matrix to caleulate Expected Credit Loss (ECL). The Group applies a simplified
appronch in caleulating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs ot ench reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historienl credit
lozs

The amount of the provision is the difference between the nssets’ enrrying amount and the recoverable amount, The recoverabla
amount, if the receivable is more than one year 18 equal to the present value of expected cosh flows, discounted at the market
rate of interest applicable to similar borrowers. The amount of the provision is recognized as an expense in profit or loss.

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are eredited to profit or loss,
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash nnd cash equivalent include eash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts, Bank
overdrafta are included within borrowings in eurrent linbilities on the statement of financial position,
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“The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit logses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss, ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due In accordance with the contract and all
the eash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted ot an approximation of the original effective interest rate, The
expected cash flows will ineluda eash flows from the snle of eollateral held or other eredit enhancements that are integral to the
contractunl terms (if any).

ECLs are recognised in two stages, For eredit exposures for which there has not been o significant increase in eredit risk since
inltinl recognition, BCLs are provided for eredit losses that result from default eventa that are possible within the next 12-
months (a 12-month ECL). For those eredit exposures for which there hos been a significant inerease in eredit risk sinee inftial
recognition, a loss allowanee I8 required for eredit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group appliea a simplified approach in ealeulating ECLs, Therefore, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowanee based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, The
Group has established o provision matrix that is bosed on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economie environment.

‘The Group ealeulates ECLs based on a three probability-weighted scenarios to mensure the expected cash shortfalls, discounted
at an approximation to the EIR. A eash shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance
with the eontract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive,

1f, in 8 subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the deerease ean be related objectively to an event
oceurring after the impairment was recognised (such ns nn improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment logs {8 recognised in profit or loss,

Financial liabilities
Finaneial linbilities nre nt nmortized cost. This include trade and other payables and borrowings.

Reeognition and measurement

Trade paynbles

Theae are initially recognized at the amount required to be paid, less, when material, a discount to reduee the payables to fair
value, Subsequently, teade payables are mensured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

Borrowings

These are recognized [nitially at falr value, net of any transaction costs ineurred, and subsequently at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, These are classified as current labllitles if pnyment is due within twelve months, Otherwise, they nre
presented ns non=current liabilities.

Derecognition of financial instruments

Finaneial asseta and labilities are derecognised when the rights to receive eash flows from the investments or settle obligations
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantinlly all risks and rewards of ownership,

Offsetting financial instruments

Financinl nssets nnd linbilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or renlise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously, The legally enforeeable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforcenble
in the normal eourse of business and in the event of default, insalvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty,

Inventories
Inventories are recarded at the lower of cost and nel realisable value, Net realizabie vilue 18 the estimated selling price in the
ordinnry course of business, less any applicable selling expenses.

The cost of finished goods and work in progress is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) methed and comprises raw
materinls, direet lnbour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating capacity), incurred in
bringing inventory to {ta present loeation and condition.

The cost of engineering spares and raw materials is determined uging the weighted average method,

AIOWARCE 18 IMAAE 10 SXCOSSIVE, ODSOICLE AN SI0W MOVINE IEMS, WIITE=00WNS 10 NEL TeAllZADIe VAIUE AN INVENTOTY 108568 Hre
expensed in the period in which the write-downs or losses oceur,
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Lenses
Lenses are divided into finance leases and operating leases,
(a) Group or Company is the lessee

(i) Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are ratained by another party, the lessor, are
clossified as operating leases. Payments, including prepayments, made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the leasor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-=line basis over the period of the lease, When an operating
lense i8 terminated before the lense period has expived, any payment required to be made to the lossor by way of penalty is
recognised as an expense in the period in which termination takes place,

(ii) Finance lease

Lenses of nasets where the Group or Company has substantinlly all the risks nnd rewnards of ownership are elnssified as finance
lenses, Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the falr value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lense payment is allocated between the liability and finanee charges so os to
achieve n constant rate on the finance balanee outstanding. The corresponding rental abligations, net of finanee charges, are
Ineluded In long term labilities If the tenure is more than one year. The Interest element of the finance coat 1a charged to the
income statement over the lease period 8o as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
linbility for each period.

(b) Group or Company is the lesgor

(i) Operating lease
When nssets are subject to nn operating lense, the nssets continue to be recognised ns property and equipment based on the
nature of the asgel, Leage income i recognised on o steaight line boals over the leage term,

Leage incentives are mmsnlacd ng o reduction ol rental income on a ﬂll‘ﬂlﬂm—llﬂﬂ basig over the leaze term.
{11} Finance lease

When nssets are held subject to a finanee lense, the related asset is derecognised and the present value of the lense pnyments
(discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lense) is recognised s o receivable. The difference between the groas recelvable
and the present value of the recolvable Ia recognlsed as unearned finance ineome, Lease income is recognised over the term of
the lease using the net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of return,

Current nnd deferred income tnx

The tax for the perlod comprises eurrent, edueation and deferred tax, Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that
it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Thae tax eurrently payable ia based on taxable profit for the year, Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes ltems
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's linbility for current tax is enleulnted using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enneted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax 8 the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the earrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the linbility method. Deferred tax linbilities are generally recognised for all tnxable temporary differences and deferred
tnx nssets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avatlable ngainst whieh deductilila
tempaorary differences ean be utilised. Sueh nsgeta and lHabilitles are not reeognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and linbilitics in o transaction that
affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Daferred tax labilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foresceable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient tnxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the nsset to be recovered, Deferred tax iz
calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the Hability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax Is ehorged or eredited to profit or loss, excopt when it relates to items eharged or eredited to equity, in which cose the
daferred tax ia algo dealt with in equity.
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Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and labilitles ave offact when there |2 a legally enforeeable right to set off eurrent tax assets ngainat current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group Intends to settle its
eurrent tax liabilities on a net bosis.

Deferred tax assets and labilities are presented as non-current in the statement of financial position,
Employee benefits

The company operates both the defined benefit (gratuity) and defined contribution pension plans for ita employees,

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the company pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
company has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributiona if the fund does not hold sufficient nssets to pay all
cmployees the benefits relating to employee sorvice in the current and prior periods,

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will feeeive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined beneflt geatuity plan is the present value of
the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets, The defined benefit obligation
is ealeulnted annually by independent netunries using the projected unit eredit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation ls determined by discounting the eatimated future cash outflows using interest rates of Federal Government of
Nigeria bonds,

The current serviee cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan is recopnised in the income statement in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee
service in the eurrent year, benefit changes curtnllments and settlements,

Pust-servies costs are recognised immediately in income.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balanee of the defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets, This cost I8 included in employee benefit expense in the income statement.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arlse,

For defined contribution plans, the company pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on o mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis, The company hag no further payment obligations onee the contributlons have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due, Prepald contributions are
recognised as an agset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future pnyments is avallable,

Export expansion grant

Export expanslon grants (EEG) from the government are recognized at fair value when there is o rensonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the company has complied with all attached conditions,

EEG are recognized in the profit or loss over the period correaponding to the costs they are intended to
The following conditions must be met by the company in order to receive the EEG:

{1) The Company must be registered with The Nigerinn Export promotion Council (NEPC)

(2) The Company must have n minimum annual export turnover of N5 million and evidence of repatriation of proceeds of
exports,

(3) The Company shall submit its baseline data which includes audited Financial Statement and information on operational
eapacity to NEPC.

(4) An eligible company shall be a manufacturer, producer or merchant of products of Nigerian origin for the export market (e,
the products must be made in Nigerin).

(5 Qualifying export transaction must have the proceeds fully repatrinted within 300 days, ealeulated from the date of cxport
and ag approved by the EEG Implementation Committes,
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Revenue from Contract with customers

The Group is in the business of manufacturing and sales of glassware, glags bottles, plastic crates and erown cork
for soft drink, breweries, Phormaceutical, cosmetic ete,

Revenue from contracts with customers |8 recognised when control of the goods or services are tranaferred to the customar ot an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expeets to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The
Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods or
services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue compriges the fair value for the sale of goods and services net of value-ndded tax, rebates and discounts,

Revenue is measured at the falr value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts received or receivable
for goods supplied stated net of discounts, returns and value added tnxes, Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all
of the following conditions are satisfied:

= the Company has identified o sales contract with n customer;

« the performanee obligations within this contract has been identified

- the transactions price has been determined;

« this transaction price has been allocated to the performance obligations in the contract; and

= pevenue is recognised as or when ench performance obligation is satisfied

The sale of bottles, plastic erates and erown corks are based on Ex-works prices agreed with the customers, Haulage services are
provided to the Customers through third party service providers as an option. The gale of bottles, plastic crates and erown corks
are distinet from haulage services for delivery of bottles and have no bearing on each other, and are negotinted separately.
Further, the consideration to be paid in one contract does not depend on the price or performance of other contrnet, Goods or
services promised in the separate contracts are not a single performance obligation. There are no other promises in the contract
that are separate performanee obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be alloeated.

The Group performs an ebligation once the products or goods are transferred to the customer, that is ownership, legal title,
physieal possession, significant control related to the products has been transferred to the customer and the customer has
accepted the products.

The Group considers whether there ave other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of bottles, plastic erates
and crown corks, the Group considers the effects of varinble conside tation, the existence of significant finanelng components,
non-cnsh consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).

The conalderntion to be received is stated in the contract i.e involce na the contract price which la agreed, accepted and signed by
the customer, Revenue comprises the fair value for sales of goods and services net of value-added tax, rebates and discounts.
Rebates constitutes a varinble consideration and are allocnted to a single performance obligation affected.

The transaction price as stated in the invoice relates to the performance of obligation by the entity when the goods have been
dellvered to the customaers,

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised when the signifieant ownership and controls of the goods are transferred to the
buyor, Where goods are picked up by customers, risk is transferred immediately. Where gooda are delivered, revenue is
recognised when ordered by the customer is delivered to the customers with the evidence of the delivery note
ncknowledged/slgned by the customers,

Varinble congideration
Rehates constitute a variable consideration and are alloented to n single performance obligatin affected.
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Revenue from contract with customer (continued)

Significant financing component

For all sales transactions, the receipt of the conslderation by the Group does not match the timing of the delivery of boitles,
plastic crates and erown corks to the customer (6.5, the consideration is paid after the galea item has been delivered). Using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15, the Group does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant
financing component sinee it expects, at contract inception, that the perlod between the transfer of the promised good or service
to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will e one year o less.

Consideration payable to o customer: No conslderntion is payable to customer in respect of sales of glass hottles, plastie
crates and erown corks.

Contract assets; No contract asset as all sales are uneonditional,

Trade receivables: A receivible represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that {s unconditional (l.e., only
the passage of time i required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract linbilities: A contract liability is the obligation to tranafer goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
peceived conslderation (or an amount of consideration Is dug) from the customer, If o customer pays consideration before the
Group transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability {8 recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract linbilities are recognised as revenué when the Group performs under the contract.

Interest income and expense

Interest income i recognised using the effective interest method. When a loan and reeelvable is impaired, the Company reduces
the earrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated future eash flow diseounted at the ariginnl effective interest
rate of the (nstrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest incame, Interest income on impaired loan and
poccivables is recognised using the original effective interest rate.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales includes the cost of manufacturing finished goods inventory (including depreciation, amortization and impairment
churges), costs related to transportation, impairment, the allowanee for doubtful accounts and inventory write-downs,

Share capital

“The Group and Company has only one class of shares; ordinary shares, Ordinary ahares are clagsitied ns equity, When new
shares are igsued, they are recorded as share capital at their par value. The excess of the issue price over the par value is
rocorded in the share premium reserve, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares or options are
shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the finaneial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders,

Statement of cash flows

The Statement of eash flows shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents during the period arising from operating activities,
investing netivities and finaneing netivities. Cash and cash equivalents inelude highly liquid investments.

“The cash flows from operating activities are determined by using the indirect method, Net income is therefore adjusted by non-
eash items, sueh a8 measurement gains or losses, changes in provisions, as well ns changes from receivables and libilities. In
addition, all income and expenses from eash transactions that are attributable to investing or financing activities are climinated,
' eash Hiows from 1nvesting and financing activities are determined by using the direct method, The Companys assignment of
the cash flows to operating, investing and financing category depends on the Company's business madel (managemaont
appronch).

Comparatives
Exeept when a standard or an interprotation permits or requires otherwise, all amounts are reported or disclosed with

comparative information. Where [AS 8 applies, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with ehanges in
presentation in the current year.

a7
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2.23 Provisions

A provigion is recognised if, ns a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated relinbly, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the linbility. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

a Finaneial instruments and risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's husiness activities expose it to a variety of finanelal risks: market risk (including forelgn exchange, interest rate,
and price), credit risk and liquidity risk. The abjective of the Group's risk management programme {a to minimise potential
adverse impacts on the Group's finaneinl performanee,

Risk management is carried out in line with policies approved by the board of directors. The board provides written principles
for overall risk management, as well as set the overall risk appetite for the Group, Specific risk management approaches are
defined for respective risks such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, and Investment of excess liquidity. The
Group's overall risk management program secks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.
Rigk manngement ig the responsibility o the “Treasury Mannger, which aima to effectively manage the tinancial risk of
Frigoglass Industries Nigetin Limited, according to the policies approved by the Board of Directors, The Treasury Managor
{dentifies and monitors financial risk. The Board provides principles for overall risk management, a8 well as policies covering
almni‘%c areas such as foreign exchange, interest rates and credit risks, use of financial instruments and inveatment of excess
liguidity.

The Group's financial instruments consist of trade and other recelvables and teade and other payables, bank borrowings and
overdraft and eash and cash equivalents. In addition, the Company has lonn to subsidiary.

3.1.1 Market risk

Murket rigk ia the risk that mevements in market rates, including forelgn exchange rates, ind commaodity prices will reduce the
Group's income, The manngement of market risk is undertaken using risk limits approved by the operating unit finance
directors under delegated authority.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risks from some of its commereial transactions and recognised nssets, The Group
buys and imports some of the raw materials used for production, the paymenta for which are made in US Dollars. Receipts for
sales of finished goods in Nigerin are in Naira whilst receipts for gales of finished goods to other countries are in US dollars.
The Group makes payments and colleets receipts primarily in Nigerian Nairn. Periodically however, receipts and payments are
made In other currencies, mostly in the US dollar.

Management's approach to managing foreign exchange risk is 1o hold foreign curreney bank accounts which act as a natural
hedge for these transactions,

Sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange rate risk

The sensitivity analysis for foreign axchange rate risk shows how changes In the fair value or future cash flows of a financlal
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates at the reporting date. The varlable balanees that the
company is exposed relate to eash balances,

The Group and Company exposure to US Dollar (USD) 15 as follows:

Group Company
z018 2017 zoiB 2017
USD'ooo  USD'o00 uUsh'ooo  USD'ooo
Financinl nsscts
Cash and eagh equivalent 15,950 10,385 439 1021
Trode receivables 3447 Bay B o

Relnted partics 42,311 45,8 ik a
61,708 87,057 42,750 -ﬁ,ﬁﬁ&

aft
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3.1.1 Murket rFisk (continued)
Foreign exchange risk (continued)

Financinl linbilities
Borrowingsa 4,765 3,416 1,543 929
Trade poyables 19,066 5514 748 640
Related parties payable Ag98 51 53 31
24,729 8,980 2048 1619,
Neét amount 36.222 53'07'7 40,405 45,247
Effects in Maira on the Group and Company result:
Group Company
z018 2017 =018 2017
N'oDo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
1§ pereent strengthening of the Naira to USD H91,488 66 2,070,062
15 percent wenkning of the Naira to USD 1,891, 2,1 2,0 1 2,070,062
zo18 2017
Reporting date spot rate ol 1USD to Naira 1 o

The above analysis is based on forelgn eurrency exchange rate variances that the Company considered to be rensonably possible
at the end of the reporting period but it has no impact on equity, The analysis assumes that all ather variables remain constant,

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group interest rate risk arises from borrowings, Borrowings are issued at floating rates exposing the Group (o cash flow
interest rate risk which is partinlly offset by eash held at variable rates, The Group's policy on managing interest rate sk s to
negotiate favourable terms with the banks to reduee the impact of exposure to this risk and to oblain eompetitive rates for loans
and for deposits,

{¢) Price risk
The Group I8 not exposed to price risk us it does not hold any equity instruments.

g.1.2  Creditrisk

Credit risk Is the risk that a eounterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in finanelal loss to the Group, The
Group is exposed to credit risk from cash and cash equivalents s well as eredit exposures to customers, including outstanding
receivables and committed transactions,

‘The Group uses policies to ensure that sales of products are to eustomers with appropriate credit history. The granting of credit
I controlled by eredit limits and the application of certain terma of sale. The continuous credit worthiness of the existing
customers is monitored periodically based on history of performance of the obligations and settlement of their debt.
Appropriate provision for impairment losses is made for specific credit riska, At the year end, Frigoglass Industries Nigeria
Limited considered that there were no material eredit risks that had not been covered by doubtful debt provisions,

Mo eredit limits on eash smounts were exceeded during the reporting period and management does not expect any losses from
non-performanee by these counterparties. None of the counterparties renegotinted their terms in the reporting period.

a9
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Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposura to credit risk for trade receivables approximates the amount recognized on the statement of financial
position. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
As at 21 December 2018, all financinl nssets of N38.#6Dbn (31 December 2017: N34.02bn) for the Group and for the Company

Nz4.97bn (31 December 2017: N21,.46bn) were fully performing, N1.31bn (31 December 2017: N2.39bn) for the Group and for

the Company No.30bn (21 December 2017: No,66bn) were past due but not impaired,

The nging analysis of the latter two eategories of receivables is as follows:

“The table below analyses the Group's finaneial assets into relevant maturity groupings as at the reporting date.

31 December 2018 - Group
Financinl nssoets;

Cash and eash equivalents (Note 18)
Trode recoivables (Note 17)

Recelvables from related parties (Note 17)
Staff advances (Note 17)

41 December 2017 - Group
Finanelal nssets:

Cash nnd eash equivalents (Note 18)
Trade receivables (Note 17)

Receivables from related parties (Note 17)
Staff advances (Nole 17)

41 December 2018 - Company
Financinl nssets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18)
Trade receivables (Note 17)

Receivables from related parties (Note 17)
Staff ndvances (Note 17)

41 December 2017 = Company
Financial asscts:

Cash and eash equivalents (Note 18)
Trade receivables (Note 17)

Receivables from related parties (Note 17)
Staff ndvances (Note 19)

Nelther pnst Past due but not impaired
diie nor Up to 9o gi-ife  Overizo Total
impaired days dnys duys
N'ooo N'ooo N'oo0o N'ooo N'ooo
10,121,137 . - - 10,131,137
3,857,476 1,150,242 46,098 5,067 5,059,783
23,310,675 107,353 2,318 = 29,420,646
154,274 - - - 154,273
16 413 8
Neither past Past due but not impaired
due nor Up to g0 g91=150 Overijo
impnired days days days Total
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'o00 N'ooo
10,274,146 - - = 10,274,146
3,678,508 1,728,087 102,599 8,149 5517403
17:513:477 517,471 31,503 - 18,062,451
63,262 - = s 163,262
ahﬁnﬂﬂﬁq wﬂ 134,1 17,262
Neither past Past due but not impaired
due nor Up to go g1=150 Overigo Total
impaired duys days days
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
1,248,330 - g = 1,248,330
649,804 281,524 22,993 954,411
22,750,078 - : - 22,750,078
;IJIEHH - s - 21,088
a 1 ) = B fAib
Neither past Past due but not impnired
due nor Up ta 9o gi - 150 Over 150
impaired dnys duys days Tatal
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
3:343,179 m . = 3,343,179
435,224 211,544 12,143 7 658,911
16,998,117 410,118 20,185 = 17437420
24,081 - - 2 24,081
ﬂﬂlﬂmlﬁﬂl 2mlﬁﬁn ﬂllaﬂ.ﬂ - ﬂiﬂﬁu_lﬂﬂi

An nnalysis of the international long term eredit ratings of ecounterpartics where cash and short-term deposita are held fa as

follows:

Credit rating
AAA

Al

B+

Group Company
018 2017 w018 zo17
N'aooo N'ooo N'aoo N'oDoo
10,007,323 10,250,332 1,248,339 3:343,179
10 10 ' -
23,804 23,804 : -
10,121,197 10,274,146 1,248,330 3,943,170

ao



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Notes to the financlinl statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.3

Credit rlsk (continued)

The eredit ratings is by Fitch and below are the interpretations of the ratings

AAA: A finaneial institution of very good condition and strong eapacity to meet its obligations as and when due, Adverse
changes in the environment (maero-economic, political and regulatory) will result in a slight increase the risk attributable to an
exposure to this financial institution. Hewever, finaneial condition and ability to meat obligations as at when due remain

AA+: A financial institution of good condition nnd strong capacity to meet its obligntions with expectations of very low default
risk. It indicates very strong capacity for payment of financial commitments, Thiscapaeity is not significantly vulnerable 1o
foreseeable events, The plus sign indicates that the rating may be raised.

B+ @ Financinl condition of the bank is weak but obligations still met as and when due. The bank has more than ene major
wenkness nnd may require external support which may not be assured. Adverse changes in the environment {macro-cconomie,
political and regulatory) will increase risk significantly, The plus sign indicates that the rating may be raised.

Nelther post due nor impaired

Credit quality of financial assets (Trade receivables, Receivables from related parties and Staff advances)

The eredit quality of financial assets (Trade receivables, Recelvables from related parties and Staff advances) that are neither
past due nor impaired can be nssessed by reference to the intornal rating provided by the finance depariment:

Internal eating categories Group Company
zo18 2017 zom8 2017
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Group A 23,465,248 17,676,730 22,772,066 17,023,008
Group B Af857.476 3,678,568 649,894

435,224,
21988907 24,421,060 17,458,338

Group A These are receivables from related parties and staff advanees,
Group B These aro trade receivables.
Liquidity viak

Liguidity risk is the riak that the Group will not be able to mect its tfinnncial obligations as they fall due, Liquidity risk is
managed by maintaining sufficient cash reserves to operational needs at all times so that the Group does not breach borrowing
limits on any of its borrowing facilities, The Group manages liquidity risk by effective working eapital and eash flow
management,

Frigogloss Inclustries Nigerin Limited invests its surplus eash in Interest bearing current aceounts,

The table below analyses the Group's financial lHabilities into relevant maturity based on the remaining period at the reporting
date to the contractunl maturity date, The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiseounted eash flows.

Less than  Between1  Betweenz

Group 1year and 2 years and 5 years Total
At 31 December 2018 N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Trade creditors and due to related parties (Note 19) 9,815 308 = = 9815308

q,mw - = ilmﬁlﬁuﬁ

Less than  Between1  Between 2

Group iyear and 2 years and 5 yenrs Total
At 31 December 2017 N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Trade creditors and due to related parties (Note 19) 3,626,192 = = 626192

mdiﬁiigi - = algzgllgﬂ

K1



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.1.3.

414

3.1.5:

Liquidity rigk (continued)

Less than Betweeni  Between 2

Compuny iyear and 2 years and § years Total
At 31 December 2018 N'ooo N'ooo N'000 N'ooo
Trade creditors nnd due to related parties (Hote 1g) 5,969,943 5,969,043
5,969,943 = - 5,969,943
Less than  Betweeni  Between2
Company iyear andzyears and§years Taotal
At 31 December 2017 N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Trade ereditors and due to related parties (Note 19) 6,056,571 - - 6,056,571
6,056,671 - = 6,056,571
Capital risk management

The objective in managing eapital is to safegunrd the Group'a ability to continue as o going concern in order to maximise returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders s well as maintaining the optimal eapital structure to reduce the cost of

In order to maintain or adjust the eapital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, capital
returned to shareholders, new shares issued, or debt ralsed.

Consistent with others in the induatry, the Group monitors eapital on a monthly basis using the gearing ratio. This ratio is
caleulated ns net debt divided by total capital, Net debt is caleulated as total borrewings (ineluding “current and non-current

borrowings' ns shown in the statement of finaneinl position) less cash and ensh equivalents, Total eapital is ealeulated as the sum
of all equity eomponents on the statement of finaneial position.

‘The gearing ratlos at 31 December 2018 and 31 Decamber 2017 are as follows:

Group Compony
g1 Dec2oi8 31 Dec 2017 31 Dec 2018 31 Dec 2017
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo

Tatal borrowings (Note 21) 1,624,630 1,040,457 526,045 283,594
Total equity 14,166 40,82 20,621,00 19,88
Gearing ratio 3% 3% 3% 2%
Fair value estimation
Group and Company

‘Ihe carrying value of all inaneil assets and tinaneinl habilities 18 4 rensonable approximation of fur value. No
further disclosure is required,

ae



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Notes to the finnncial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Critical accounting estimates and judgments
Critienl secounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements requires directors to use judgment in applying its nccounting policies and estimates and
assumptions aboul the future, Estimates and other judgments are continuously evaluated nnd are based on directors experience
and other factors, including expeetations about future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Significant accounting judgments and estimates made in the preparation of the financial statements is shown below.

Property, plant and equipment

Plant and machinery is depreciated over its useful life. Frigoglass Industries Nigeria Limited estimates the useful lives of plant
and machinery based on the period over which the nssets are expected to be available for use. The estimation of the useful lives
of plant and machinery are based on technical evaluations earried out by those staff with knowledge of the machines and
experience with similar assets, Estimates could change if expectations differ due to physical wenr and tear and technical or
commereial obsolescence. Tt is possible however, that future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the
estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above. The amounts and timing of expenses for any period would be
affected by changes in these factors and cireumstanees, A reduction in the estimated useful lives of the plant and machinery
would Increase expenses and decrense the value of non-current assets.

Critlenl necounting estimates and judgements (continued)

Export expansion grant and Negotiable duty credit certificate

Export Expansion Grant (EEG) is n very vital incentive of the Federal Government of Migerla required for the stimulation of
export orfented nctivities that will lead to significant growth of the non-oll export sector. Having met the eligibility criteria and
registered under the scheme by the Nigerian Export Promotion Council (NEPC), the Company is entitled to a rebate on export
snles in s mich as it can dsmonstrate that the procesds of the related sales have been repatriated through an approved
channels to the country within 300 (formerly 180) days of such export sales .

The rebate is recognised as a eredit to cost of sales and as a recelvable from the Federal Government of Nigerin (i.e. EEG
receivable), As ot 31 December 2018, EEG receivable stood at N 1,80 billion and No.o7 billion (31 December 2017: N1.65 billion
and No.o7 billion) for Group and Company respectively as disclosed in Note 17,

Negotiable Duty Credit Certificate (NDCC) is the instrument of the Federnl Government of Nigeria (FGN) for settlement
of EEG recelvable, The NDCC was used for the payment of Import and Excise duties in lien of cash. However, NEFC has stopped
{sauing NDCC in line with the new guidelines and all our NDCC has been returned for replacement with proposed promisory
notes in line with the new guidelines, As at 31 December 2018, Unutilized NDCC stood at N 1,02 billion (31 December 2017:
N1.02 billion) ns disclosed in Note 17,

I nougn, & MEnIteant coMPonent o1 the kil receivable ana URUNNZED NOLC have been outstanding 1or more tian 1 year, no
impairment charge have been recognised beenuse they are regarded as soverelgn debts. Moreover, Government hnve not
communieated or indieated unwillingness to honour the obligations. Thus, the outstanding balances are classified a8 eurrent
nasets nccordingly.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable on differences between the earrving amounts of linbilities in the financial
gtutements and the corresponding tox bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is aceounted for using the liability
mathod. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Such Habilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initinl recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the aceounting profit, Management has caleulated the deferred
tax linbility based on estimated amounts of underlying transactions. Actual amounts may differ from estimated balances,

a3



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Maotes ta the finaneial statements {continued)
Vor the year endéd 31 December 2018

Revenue from contrnets with customers Group Company
2018 L2017 2018 2017
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Glass produats 26,321,014 au, 186,258 s -
Packaging for heveraged 15 | N 9,068,006 10,441,821 9,068,008
46,763,836 AL255,164 10,441,821 2,068,905,
Expenses
aail 2047 20iR 2017
N'oon N'aoo N'oon N'ooo
Coat af aales
Mauterinl consumed (Note 16) {13,862,028) (10,831,548) {5:081,324) (4,869,187
Deprecistion (Note 15) (2.420,730) (z315.501) (300,552) (=8z,002)
Technieal nsslstance fees - Frigoglass Global Limited (Mate 27) (1,048,000 (BAg.314) {219.260) (196,.447)
Factory salaries and related staff cont (Note 7) (2a156941) {i,834,119) {afia,G0f) {aof,048)
Fuel, gas and electricity (5.a96,053) {g,206,610) (go2,887) (523,861)
Other factory averhenda {2,477,370) {2,273,740) {314,089) (330,26z2)
(27,821,103) (23,350,020) (7,580,729) (6,412,527)
Administrative exponses
Depreclation and amortisation charges (Note 14 & 15) (178.474) (149,678) (43,044) {(amo1z)
Auditors remuneration (46,658) (40021 (aoa33) (17,851
Lagal and profossional fees {(1aa,8a9) (Boq23) (39,606) (19,330)
Salaries and related mall cost (Hote 7) {1,205,000) {1,138, 700) {190,374) (158.837)
Directors' Femuneration (Note 270) (11,884) {i3,190) (11,558) (D,190)
Teavel and tranaportation (1fg,601) (181,217) (66,381) (63,042)
Other administrative expenses (fo0,007) (342,036) (331,045) (244,418)
(2,345,024) (1,942,287) {702,210) (549,159)
Solling and distribution expenan (#1061) (97,792} ' =
“Total cost of cont of snles, adminisirative expenses ond distribution costs (29 947,306) {23,301,001) (R,afiz,864) (6,061,686)

Ineluded in legal and profeasional foes of the group for the year ended 31 Deceimber 2018 i non = audit fees to PrleewntethouseCoopers Limited of
Na.o millian being foe payable in relation to Tranafer pricing decumentation (31 December 2017: Ne.75 million)

Employee costs
sl 2017 no1d o7
N'ooo N'ooo N'ono N'oon
Wiges nnd salaries {3.074,301) (2,416,023) {qon,f61) {318,018)
Intereat on employes bonefit obligation (Mot 22) {364,068) {398,852) {31,746) (32,883)
Current service cost of emplayee benefit abligation (Mote 22) (163,472) {158,00z) {20,575) (15,684)
Total (Note 6) {1,601,841) (2.972.897) (58982 (366,584)
Other incoma
2018 2017 2018 2017
N'ooo N'o00 N'ooo N'ooo
Profit on dispoanl of property plant and equipment {(Note 25) 15,633 15,958 1,430 7,119
Sundry income 74,404 aab,646 19,71 16,257
Dividend Ineome # o 331,049 303,203
Sale of sorap and others figh,233 72,060 74,738 FrA1E
Net gain on sottloment of amployee bonefit obligation 463,750 = 52,062
Incomo fram admin Charges Jo,000 49,000 J0,000 J,000
—l:128,020 B48,604 (09,913 S3.972
Dividond i rapr groda ived i dividend from Beta Olass Ple.

* Beling eurtallinent galn on fnal setlement of emploves benaflt abligation (gratulty schema)

R



IFRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGIRIA) LIMITED

Notes to the finnneial statoments (eontinued)
For the venr ended 31 December 2018

11

Poreign exchange gain/(lozs)

Faralgn exchange gain
Forvign exchanje loas

Not foreign exchange gain
Finance income and expenses
Finanes incoms

Tnteredt ncome

Finance cost
Interest expense

Mot financs income

Income tix exponse

Tnenine 1K
Eilueation tax

Net income and oducation tnx for the year (Note 20)

Doforrod tax charged / (eredit)
Net deferred tax for the yenr (Note 23)

Tux expense

“Ihe tax on the Campany's profit before tax diffors from the theoretieal smount that would aris

Eiffective tix reconcllintion
Profit befors tnx

Incame tax using tha domestic corporation tax rte of 0%

Tax offvcts of:

Han chargenble income
Non deductible expenses
Effect of education tax
Effect of tax incentive

Tatal ineome tax expenss In statemant of profit or loss

Earnings por share

Group Compuny
wold a0y z018 w17
Moo W'ooo Wooo N'oon
1,013,610 2,017,174 HHo,HHy 1,679,060
—lilbie 07178 S80,883 L673,060,
a0if 2017 ol 2017
N'onn N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
2,506,474 1,818,790 4,010,437 1,524,546
(apa,845) (213,335)  (999.604)  (1,054,925)
21620 1,605,404 1,019,841 469,621
ami 2017 FTTES ET
N'ooo N'oo0 N'ann N'oon
1,457,166 2,491,009 Bag.096 955,966
202,354 affind 67,684 69,256
1,659,520 H752,008 920,780 1,025,228
1,843,981 {R47,002) 446,684 430870
1,143,331 (Gaz.998) 446084 430871
e tifi02, 840 Ji04,001 L367,464 LA85,000,

o uning the basie tax rate of the Company ns follows:

11,426,617 10,335,411 4,500,484 4,783,872
3,427,085 100,617 1,370,845 L435162
(fg,780) (114,006) {66,210) (60,641
KLELE 48,546 719 077
202,354 261,015 67,604 60,256
(68,192) (Hu,087) {12,073) (10,659)
3,508,840 5,204,691 1,367,464 1,465,093,

Baslo carnings por share (EPS) 1a ealeulated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average numboer of

ordinary shares sutstanding at the end of the reporting period,

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Campany = N'ooo

Walghtod average number of ordinary shares in issue - 'ooo

Baslo sarnings por share (Naia)

28T 2,130,719 203,00 H
ERrALLS B AL ERVALE ERVALER
138 1041 Zif2 289,

Diluted £ {5 tho samo as the Basic EPS as there are no potentinl seouritios convertible to ordinary sharea,



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Botox to the fMinancial statements (continued)
Far the year ended 31 December o1l

14

15

it

axtment in subsidi Compnny
. L i giDeczoif 31 Deczoly
N'oon N'ooo
Investimant 1786100 1,786,190
Thia related to i 61.80% Investment in Bota Glass Ple, n subsidiary of the Company which is consolidated.
i it biated
The non controlling interest portion ia distributed amongst R
aofi 2017
Frigoinvest Haldings B.V Barh Bayh
Stanbic INTC Nominees Nigeria Limited 5.70% 7.89%
Dalta State Ministry of Finance Incorporated 4.45% A45%
Othets 10, 8% 17.6%
Intangible nssets rup Company
aail 2017 2018 2017
Cost N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Asat 1 January 0,211 60,211 23,129 ERBEL
Additions 3,077 - - =
Anat 31 Decomber 63,288 B 211 ERMEL] 23,120
Accumulated amortisation:
As at 1 January 50,125 44,004 23,129 aifiga
Amartization charge for the year 2,368 6,001 z 1,379
Anat 1 Docomber 52,494 5185 R1RG ENRELR
Net book values
At 31 Decomber 10,705 10,086 - g
‘The remaining amertizntion period of the intangible asset is betwoon 1 and 3 yenrs.
Amartization charges {8 included in administrative expendes
Praperty plant and equipiment (See pages 45 - 48)
Oroup Company
Inventories
gl 2017 2018 2017
N'ooo N'oo0o N'ooon N'ooo
Ttaw matorinls 3,024,401 2,757,045 1,816,500 1,000,942
Worlein-projgress 230,431 50,312 230,000 RELR
Finiahed goods 1,828,987 1,500,244 478,330 FA6, 779
Spare parts and consumahles 1930,331 1,fi01,574 347,978 290,086
%,339,236 6,441,175 2,872,808 2,907,795
Goods in tranait 1,370,102 2,150,986 180,791 1,160,000
—20R8 B59R101 LO051,599 1,466,806
Analyais of value of inventories included in cost of sales and charged ta profit or loss is s follows:
zo18 o1y EG I 2017
N'oono N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Cost of inventories included in cost of sales (Hote &) w §.0f1,324 4,860,187

6
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Wotes to the financlal statements {zontinued)
Tor the year ended 31 December 3018

17

Triade and other recoivables

Trado rocoivables

Unutilised Negotinble Duty Credit Cortificatos (Note 4)
BEG recelvable (Note 4)

Prepiyments

Other recaivablos

Staff ndvances

e from rolated companies (Note 27)

Allawanes for expected credlt loss (Mote 17,2)
Tatal

Othar rocolvable represents insuranee claim receivables

Propuyment ineludes Prepald Insurance, Propaid Rent and Others. The prepald rent {s for short torm paried
Tradde receivables are non- interest boaring and are genorally on payment terms of 36 - 90 days

Group
Clroas
ECL
Mat

Company
Gross

ECL

Mut

Lot aut below ia the movement in the allowance for expocted eredit loases:

Trade Recelvable

Ad at 1 Jannuary (TAS 30)

Effect of adaption of IFRS ¢ (Note 2.1.2)
As ot 1 Junnunry (Restated)
Reversal of provision during the year
Adiditional Proviaton during the year
Used during the year

As at 31 December

Stall Receivable

As ot 1 Janauary (IAS 39)

Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 2.1.2)
As at 1 Janauary (Restated)
Rovoraal of provision during the year
Additional Proviaion during the year
Usied during the year

As ot 11 Decembor

Related Parties Recelvahle

As at 1 Jannunry (IAS 30)

Effect of ndaption of IFRS ¢ (Nole 2,1.2)
Az at 1 Jannuary (Restated)
Revoraal of pravision during the year
Additienal Provision during the year
Uaed during the year

As nt 31 Decomber

ar

Group Company
zoil rmy 201l 2017
Nooo Moo N'ooo N'ooo
5:059,783 5517408 954,411 658,011
1,007,817 1,004,804 e .
1,804,912 1,651,040 69,166 9,166
316,066 420,591 60,339 125,558
144,130 72,584 3137 B40
154,273 163,262 21,088 24,081
[{] i 062,451 23,750,078 17437 R0,
917,927 26,012,163 23,859,119 18,916,050
(64,651) . (7.917) -
13,1 [
Ralated Party
Trade Recelvable  Staff Loan Racoivable
5,059,781 154,273 23,420,640
_{padan) (5,A82) (36,334)
5037,34 148,301 23,384,311
Related Party
Trade Recelvable  Stafl Loan Receivable
954411 21,088 u2,rE0,078
21,088 su 750,074
Group Comipiny
2,018 &,017 ®,018 w7
Moo MO0 N'ooo N'ooo
ELRTH 28,704 7:937 a7
7120 i i *
42,738 28,704 7037 7937
(10,303) - £ -
- 7,183 . .
Y (10,278) . :
2,435 45,600 7,037 7:937
w,mH 2,017 2,018 =017
N'ooo N'oon N'ooo N'ooo
5379 "
370 - = =
fiod - - -
fiftd-I] s . -
a,mB 2,017 2,018 2,017
N'ooo N'ooon N'ooo N'ooo
40,724 . - =
30724 ’ = &
{3,89) -

36334
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Notos to the financinl stntements (continued)
Tor the year ended 31 December zo18
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7.2

17-3

19

Trade and other recelvable (continued)

Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 (Note 2.1.2)
Trads Recelvable

Siafl Recelvable

Ralnted Partios Recoivablo

Gross

Defarred tax (Note 23)

Met Bifeet of adoption of IMRS g

Summanry of movement in ECL
As ot 1 Junuary restated:

Trade Recoivablo

Staff Recoivable

Rolated Parties Reeelvable

Net impairment gain / (loss) for the year
Trude Recoivablo

Staff Rocoivable

Talated Parties Recelvable

As nt 11 Decembor 2018

Trade and other receivable for cashilow purpose
Trade and ather receivablos

Withholding tax utilised for tax payment

Expected crodit loss (ECL) to retained earnings

Trade and other recelvables for Cashflow Statement

Cash and cosh equivalonts

Canhi ot bank
Caili 6 hand

Caah in hand and at bank

For the purpose of the eash flow statement, cash and cash equivilonta eomprise of: ensh In hand, cash ot bank and bank overdraft,

Canh I hand and at bank

Cash and cash equivalents

‘Trade and other paynbles

Trade oraditors
Othar croditors and neeruals
Duo to related companies (Mote 27)

All trade payvablea are due within twelve (12) months,

7,120 . - -
5:379 w ' 5
39,724 . = -
itk o = "
(16,716) - = .
42,734 2l 704 7937 7937
5479 bl = 7
77 2,704 7,937 7.937
(10,301} {3,005) 2 .
507 . - .
{3,a80) = = C
{1:,1H9) (3,008} N =
64,651 25,600 77 2837,
Group Company
o1l 2017 2018 z017
N'aoo N'ooo N'ooo N'oon
41,843,276 26,912,163 23,851,182 18,316,876
157,561 137,561
§2,232 & = -
__aeobyoby  stoinity 230z ESI6H70
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 207
N'ano N'ooo N'ooo N'oou
10,119,967 10,273,112 1,847,511 3,342,480
1,170 1,004 Bof (D3]
o loEy 10,374,146 1,248,339 ddd3A79,
Group Campiny
201l 2017 2018 BO17
N'oon N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
10,121,137 16,274,140 1248019 1343470
e 10NRLNY 10,374,146 4,248,339 3,343,179
Group Company
zoiB RO17 EL L] 207
N'ooo N'oon N'oon N'ooo
§,468,500 3347830 468,300 219,416
216,742 2,776,254 888,533 B3n,mB
446, 278,672 5:i501,544 5,837,155,
o 1400m0q7  64omdqs 654zt 6Ho6afy
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Naotes to the financial statements (continued)
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Trade and other payables (continued)

Trade and Gther payables for Cashiflow Statement
Trada and Other payables
Dividend writon back to retained sarmings

Trade and Other payables for Cashflow Statement

Tux payahblo

The movement in tax payable la s follows:
At 1 January

Provlaton for the year {Note 11)

WHT eredit note utilized during tha year
Paymant during the year

At 31 December

Borrowings

Short term borrowings

Reconcilintlon of short term borrowings:
Borrowlng as at 1 January 2017

Repaymeant during the year

Addition during the yoar

Borrowing ns nt 11 December aoay

1,624,040 1,046,457

13,033,047 6,402,445 6,858,470 O Ha90,480
13,032,047 G 0BG bfadaze 940,089
Grotip Compnny
anif 2017 ao18 RON7
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'aoo
4,133,170 2,040,514 1,192,550 617,943
1,659,520 1,753,685 920,780 1,035,222
(157,501) (a38,563) (137.561) (227,362)
(1,580,536) (1,421,468) (f91,307) (223,259)
3,04 ﬁlﬁga 4,133,170 ilﬂ!ﬂlﬂ ﬂ! 1,199,550
Group Compiny
zo18 o1y ami 2017
N'ooo M'Goo MN'ooo N'oon

526,045 283,504

1,624,630 1,046,457 526,045 283,504
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
N'ono N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
1,046,457 - aB,504 s
(1,046,457) - (283.504) -
1,624,630 1,046,457 526,045

1,024,030 1,046,457

I“'Inﬂ éﬁ

Short torm barrowings represents Bunker Acceptance from a commercial Bank for the importation of raw materiali ot a fixed interemt rate of

Likar+5.5% payable within 30 to 90 days.

Employee benefits obligation

The table below autlines whera the group's post-omployment nmounta and netivity are included in the financial statements:

Suitement of financinl position obligations for;
Past-smploymant benofit

Linhility in the statement of financial poxition

Charge to stitement of comprehensive income Included in employvs benefits expenao for:

Post-employment banafit

Romeasuroments for:
Pogt-smploymant benaefit

Group Campany
aoil 2017 2018 2017
N'ooo N'ann N'ooo N'oon
% 2,931,863 = I ART
ST ST
aroup Company
zo1# o1y uo1l oy
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
527,541 550,874 R E Al 500
272,54 516,874 A3,121 48,560,
B (58,097) . 5afu
- (AR89 : Bt

‘The provision far gratuity was hased on independent netuarial valuation performed by independent actuaries using the projected unit eredit methad,
‘Tha group dees not maintain any asseta for the greatuity plan but ensures that it hos sufficient funds for the obligations as they crystallize,



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

motos to the financial statements (continued)
Tor the year ended 31 December zo18

Employee benefits obligation (continued)

The amounts recagnised in the statement of finaneial position are determined ns follows:

Prosent value of abligations (unfunded)

The movement in the defined benofit abligation over tho yoor is ax followa:

Balanes it the beginning of the year

Charge during the yoar;

Current servico cost (Note 7)

Intorest for the year (Nole 7)

Mot gain on settlement of emploves obligation (Note 7)

Taotal

Ramonriirementi:
Aetuinrinl loases / (galng) - change in financial nespmption
Actunpinl (gning) - experience ndjustment

Paymenti from plan:
Benefits pald by the employer

Balnnee ot the end of tho yoar

The significant netuarial assumptions were as follows:

Dlacount Fate (p.a.)
Fuiliire avermge pay Increase (p.a.)
Average rate of inflation {p.a.)

2018 2017 soxld w7
N'ooo N'ooo N'oono N'oon

= 2,011,861 2 um:aa

2018 2017 goif 2017
N'ooo N'aon N'ooo N'oon
2,031,863 2,615,121 257,198 211,819
16,472 158,002 20,375 15,684
464,068 J08,852 31,246 qa, 882
{463,750) = (52,62) -
63,791 556,874 (841) 48,560
9,99&554 3,171,095 256,207 262,385

= 72,741 . 9.542
= (131,738) x {4,280

. (8o : st
(2,095,654) (181,135) (256,297) (10,509).
= :ﬂ 1,863 = sﬁz‘n iﬂ

anifl 2017

= 14%

" 14N

" 12%

Following various discussions, with the Employes Unions on managing the Gratuity Seheme, the Compiny entered into an agrésment with the
Unians to discontinue the Gratuity Scheme and all sutatanding labilities per employee settled before 31 December 2o18,

Effective from 31 Decamber 2018, the gratulty scheme is abollshed.

Deforred tax liakilities
The analysis of deferved tax labllity is as follows:

Daferred tax linbility:
- Tia bo rocovered afterCla montha

The movement in doferred tax lHability i as follows:

At start

Chinnges during the vear
= Dbt to other comprehensive income
= Dbt / (Credit) to profit or loss (Note 1)
- Credit to retained sarnings (Note 17,1)

At onid of the year

Group Compiny
a0l a7 2018 207
N'ooo Moo N'ooo N'oon
G779 A:740,193 2,844,054 A7ATe
G72797 474693 eBad05 8397370

Groun Company
2018 2017 2018 2017
N'ooo N'aon N'ooo N'ono
4.746,103 4,276,501 2,397,370 1,050,183
= 17,594 - (1,684)
1,843,321 {547,992) d4i,084 430,871
(16,716) . . .
BEZEZO7 4746103 SBA4054 2307370




FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018

Deferred tax linhilities (continued)

Group Compuny
Fixed nssots Provisions Total  Fixed nssets Provisions Total
N'oo 000 N'ooo N'oon Woon N'ooo
Al 1 JARURFY 2017 2,606,702 1,669,889 4,270,501 J48.778 1,613,405 1,959,183
{Credited)/ Charged ta profit of
loss and OCI {205.907) _(anga00)  (530,308) 10,011 428,170 438,187
At 31 December 2017 200,795 1345308 746,193 355,789 2,041,581 2,197,170
Charged to profit or loss and OCI Gfa035 L1060 i, Rah 604 76,213 70,471 1,684
At ji Deceimber 2018 3,081,730 2,491,067 5572797 432,002 2,412,052 2,844,054
Share capital
Authorised:
zo18 RO17
N'aoo N'oon
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of fokobo oach 0,000 fO0.000
Allotted, called up and flly paid:
437, m;:aﬁﬂ ordinary shores of 5ok ench 218,591 ELAT
Cash generated from / (usod in) operating activities Group Company
winl @017 zoif 2017
Note N'ooa W'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Cash flows from opernting netivities
Prafit before thx 11,406,017 10,59 5.411 4.860,484 4,783,872
Adjustment for;
Dapreciation 15 2,506,636 2,450,499 343,595 316,085
P'rofit on disposal of property, plant ond equipment (15,633) (19,958) (1,493) {7.119)
Amaortisation charges 14 2,368 6,061 = 1,279
Tntereat on employee benefit obligation 29 164,008 HUHN L 41,746 qa,B82
Current servica costs on other emplayes benefit
abligation un 163,472 158,032 20,475 15,684
Nt gain on setilement of employes benegit a2 {463,750) = {5a.96u) £
Finance Income 0 (500474) (1,818,7:10) (2,010.437) (1,524.846)
Finance expenss 10 aa4, 8458 213,335 900,604 1,084,925
Changes in working eapitnl:
Ineroase in trade and other recelvables (Hote 17.3) (5,150,905) {4,935,509) {5,071, 867) (4,106,615
{Decrense) / Increse In inventory (7o1,u47) (2,58,015) EELL (4,700,763)
Deerease in trade and other payables (Note 19.1) 6,6, 6oy A4 (38,013) H,363,652
Mot eaxh generated from / (used in) operations 12,669,800 ;283,589 (1,305, 0m1) 2,197,210
In the statement of cash flows, procoeds fram salo of property, plant and equipment eomprise:
{g%m il\Iru.lwu “E%‘E‘E‘m‘#h‘,}f‘.ﬂ&‘l"éﬁ ﬂ)qmpmm ary Bi,464 17,488 3,059
{Note 8) 15,633 10,058 1,433 7,118
Proeeeda from disposal of property, plant and equipmant an.070 101,423 1,021 10,176




FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Notes to the finanelal statoments (eontinued)
For the year ended 31 Decomber 2018

a6 Operating lense commitments

“tha Group leases land, bulldings plant and machinery undor non cancellnble opernting lease agreements. The leass tonure s 10 years and s
renewable at the end of the leaso.

The future aggregate minimum lease paymenta under non-eancellable operating leases are as follows:

Group and Company
2018 woy
N'ooo N'ano
Mot later than i yoar 44,556 43,556
Later than 1 yoar nio later than 5 years 129,668 170,204
Later than § yeara 127,668 170,224

sozég0 383002

27 Related parties

‘Tha Group is owned by Frigoinvest Heldinga B.Y Netherlands with aver 7o% of Its shares. The ultimate parent company is Frigoglass 8.A.1C and the
Group in thus related to other subsidinries of Frigoglass 8.A.1.C through common sharholdings or common directorships. Transactions arising
from dealings with relatod parties are as detalled below,

The following companies are related portios of Frigoglass Industries Nigeria Limited:

Frigogloss $.A.1,C = Ultimate parent and ultimate controlling party
Betn Glass Plo, - Subsidinry company

Frigoinvest Halding B.V. Netherlands - Intermedinte parent company
Higerlan Dottling Company = Shoreholder

A.C, Leventls Plo - Common directorship

a Remuneration of key management personnel
Koy management personnel includos the Board of directors (execitive ind non executive) and memberd of the Executive Committen. The
compenantion pald or payable to key manngement for omployes services s shown below:

Group Compnny
goif aGiY 2ol 2017
N'ooo N'a00 N'oon N'onn
Poea for services na directors 4040 3,735 4,040 3725
Salaries nnd wages 6,615 nds. 6,615 5eA
11,555 9,170 10,556 9,170

b The number of directors of the Company based on range emolument is as below

a0if 2017 201k zO17
Number Numher Number MNumber
Higo,0m - Njoo,000 - - = =
= MA00,000 i i 4 iq
4 4 4 4
Direetars with no emolumants ) i 3 J

Direetor with no emoluments waived their right to recelve remuneration from the company,

aoil 2017 zonfi 2017

W'oon N'onn N'ooo N'ooo

Amount paid to the highest pald director 6,615 2373 6,615 o 39
Amount pald to Chairman 2,490 2,373 #4190 2,375

¢ Teansnctions with rolated parties
The following transactions ropresents took place betwoon the Company and its related parties diring the year:

e(l) Sales of goods

ao18 2017 2018 2017
Nooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo

Biiles of goods:
Higorian Battling Compuny 9,636,404 9,026,485 £.740.590 5.079.035

Uooda ae sold bosed on the prico lists i toree and credit period rangos from 30 Lo 60 daya. Accordingly, thoy are at arma lengih.

i



FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Notes to the finaneial statements (eontinued)
For the yenr endod 31 Decembor 2018

w7

ofii)

(-9

Related parties (continued)
Purchnses of services
20iB 2017 2018 2017
NW'ano N'oon N'ooo N'ooo
Purchaie of servicos:
Frigoglass Global Limited (Noto 6) 1,048,981 #9314 419,269 100,447
AG. Leventis Ple RELE & 1
1,048,986 2414 219,209 190,447

“The transaetion with Feigoglass Global Limited waa for the supply of technical expartise to Betn Glags Fle and Frigoglass Industries Nigeria Limited
The technlenl sorviee fee represonts 3% and 2% of net ales from production activities af Dot Glass Ple and Prigoglada Industries Nigerin Limited
raspectively nn approved by the Hational Office for Technology Aequlaition and Promotion (NOTAP) certificate numbers oosga4 for Beta Glogs Fle
with maturity profile of three (3) years from o1 January 2016 1o 31 December 2018 and cortificates number 005891 and 006359 for Frigoglas
Industries Nigerin Limited with maturity profile of three (3) years from 01 January 2015 ta 31 December 2017 and o1 January 2018 10 11 Decomber
2020 respoetively, Also ineluded in the technical servico charge for the yoar Is Value Added Tax (VAT) at 5% pald on the tochnieal service foa,

Transaction with A.G, Leventla Pleare for the provision of hauloge services and leaso of properties, The smount charged for the year is included in
the other adminlstrmtive expenses undor adminlstrative expenses

Purchases are from companies with common ultimate parent and ultimaote controlling party. The purchases are at prices eamparable to those
abtninable from third parties,

Due to related companies
This represents balanco due to relatod parties as ot yoar end:
Group
o1l 2017
Description N'ooo N'oon
Frigogluss SAIC Purchane of aervices 23,741 =
A0, Leventis PLC Purchaso of services - 25,466
Frigoglnss India Purchase of goods 18,240 14,183
Frigoglaas Global Purchaae of servicas 403,677 237,800
Frigoglass West Africa (FWAL)  Intercompany payable 1157 1157
Frigogluss Jebel Ali Purchnse of porvices . -
Aab,bo5 PR ETL
Company
a0l 2017
Deseription N'ooo N'ooo
Bota Olass Ple Intarcompany trensury balances B140,056 514,776
Beta Glass e Payment made on behalf of the company 2ff,939 ab7E0
Frigoglass Indin Purchase of goods 1f,240 14,183
Frigoglnas Weat Africa (FWAL) Payments mode by FWAL customars 1,157 1,157
Frigoglass Global Purchase of servicod

s 2
u.sm.m E !’%1%

Due from related companies
This roprosents the balance due from related parties os ot year end:

Group

goid 2017
Description N'ooo N'ooo
Frigoglnes South Africa Paymenta made on behalf of Frigoglass South Africa 12,714 .!au
Fn nad JEDEL AN I nrﬁm!‘lfnrbv Ing - l.:‘rﬂ';.d 3
Irigoglnag Inaonemn Payiients mids an DNl of Frgoglias inaonesn 433 v
Prigolnvest Holdings BV Intercompany loan and other receivablea 16,401,574 12,084,550
Frigoglnss West Afrien Intercompany Lloan and other recelvablos B.OR A 2,191,795
Higerin Nattling Co (N1IIC) Intercompany recelvablea 1871,071 L6772
AG, Loventis Ple Intercompany receivables 28 =
27, 4190, 18,00 1

Company
aoif 2oy
Deseription N'ooo N'ooo
rigoglnsa South Africa Payments made on behalf of Prigoglass South Africa 12,714 7.241
Rta COlass Plo Fayments made on behalf of Bota Glass PLC - -
Frigoglass Johol Ali Intercompany loan and other receivables - 1,207,491
Frigoginas Indonesin Payments made on hehalf of Frigoglnsa Indonesin 431 -
Frigalnvest Holdings 1L,V Intercampany loan and other recelvablea 16,401,574 12,084,850
Frigaglass West Africa intoreompany loan and ather recafvablea 5,024,275 2,191,705
Higerin Bottling Co (NIC) Sales of bottles and purchase of cullet 1,;;@5 1,048,341
22,750,07 17,437,420



TRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Notes to the financinl siatoments (continuad)
Tor the yoar ended 31 Decomber 2018

27 Related partles (continued)

Die from related eompnnies (continued)

“The pecelvalles from related parties arose mainly from loan and salo trandaetions which ate due two months after the date of sales, The loan
recelvablo hoata intercst ot Buribor + 8.5% and ropaynble on demand while sales recoivablea are unsecured in noture and boar no interest, There are
nio provisiona held ngainst rocivables from roluted parties,

The payables to related partios arose mainly from purchase transaetions du within 30 to 6o days aftor the date of purchase. The payables boar o
Interest,
a# Contingent labilities

The group is presently involved in five (5) litigation suita as ot 5 Docomber 2018, The claima ogalnst the group from the sults amount 1o N2.ag
Billion (31 Decomber 2017 N2.33 billien) an of roperting date. No provision hing beon made for these claims, Braed on legal advies, the directors
bieliove that no significant loss will eventuate ,

Guarantes on behalfof Frigoglass Finanoo BV,

In the year 3617 the Company and its subsidiary- BotaGlass PLC guarantees first lien indebtedness (romprised of lons and notes) incurred by other
miemburs of the Frigoglass Group of approximately €120.0 million, which matures on 31 Decembor 3021 and seeand Hen indoltedness (comprised
of Inans and notes) of approximately Ciai million, which matures af 51 March 2022

un Capital commitments
The eompany had no eapital commitments as at 31 Decomber 2018 (11 December 20171 Nil),

a0 Subsequent ovents

Ho dividend was declared far 2018 year end and there were no ather ﬂoﬂ. balance sheet events which eould have had a material effect on the state of
affairs ara:’ha company ad at 31 Decembor 2018 and on the profit for the year ended on that date which have not been adequately provided for or
rocognised.

41 Complinnce with regulntory requirements

TT]N was no penalty for non-compliance mattars with respeet to rogulatary requirements for the year endud 31 December 2018 (31 Docember 20171
i)

a2 Partculars of staff

The average numbar of persons, excluding directors, employod by the group and éompany during the year wis 04 follows:

Group Company

wolH 2017 zoil 2017
Numbar Number Number Number
Muonagomont a1 425 i b
Factory 401 07 iy s
Saled and Administration a [} i i
__Z10 Zi 102 103

"I'he number of thi smployoes in Nigena with grods emoluments excluding Fetirement benetits within the bands stated below wore:

Group Company

poil 2017 20if aniy
Number Humber Niuimber Number
Nboo,o01 =  NBoo,000 = . H _
MBa,001 = N1,000,000 a3 16 q i
Hi,000,001 = N1,200,000 52 43 10 10
Mi,200,001 = N1,400,000 6h 75 6 L
Mi,400,001 - Ni,600,000 a2 il & F
Hi,600,001 - Ni,Bo0,000 49 49 12 i3
HiBoo001 - N2,000,000 54 4a 10 10
Hg,o00,001 = N2 500,000 153 1560 33 a3
Hg, 500,001 = N3,000,000 136 138 14 14
Cwvor N3,000,000 iy al G [
Za0 731 102 1608
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FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Statement of value added - Company
For the year ended 31 December 2018

2017 2016
Note N'ooo % N'ooo %
Revenue 5 10,441,821 9,068,905
Finance income 10 2,010,437 1,524,546
Other income 8 500,012 533,972
Net foreign exchange gain 9 880,883 1,673,060
13,852,053 12,800,482
Bought in materials and services
- Imported : (3,299,935) (3,917,022)
= Local _ (4186,453) (2,359,814)
Value added 6,365,664 100 6,523,645 100
Applied as follows:
% %
To pay employees:
- Wages, salaries and other benefits 7 452,982 7.1 366,584 5.6
To pay providers of eapital:
- Finance cost 10 909,604 157 1,054,925 16.2
To pay government:
- Income tax expense 11 1,367,464 20.5 1,465,003 22.5
To provide for enhancement of assets and growth:
- Depreciation of plant, property and equipment 15 343,595 5.4 316,985 4.9
= Amortization of intangible assets 14 = 1.0 1,279 1.0
- Profit for the year from continued operations 3,202,020 _50.3 3,318,778 50.9
Value added 6,365,664 100 6,523,645 100

Note: Statement of value added is not a required disclosure under IFRS
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FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Statement of value ndded - Group

For the year ended 31 December 2018

2017 2016
Note N'ooo % N'ooo %
Revene 5 36,762,836 31,255,169
Finanee income 10 2,506,474 1,818,719
Other income 8 1,429,020 848,664
Net foreign exchange gain 9 1,013,610 2,017,178
41,711,940 35,930,746
Bought in materials and services
- Imported (9,046,510) (7.022,357)
= Loeal (i4,712,922) (12,930,184)
Value added 1 2,50 100 15,087,20 100
Applied as follows:
% %
To pay employecs:
= Wages, salaries and other benefits 7 3,601,841 201 2,672,807 18.6
To pay providers of capital:
- Finance cost 10 324,845 1.8 213,335 1.3
To pay government:
- Income tax expense 11 3,502,840  10.5 3,204,601 20.0
To provide for enhancement of assets and growth:
- Depreciation of plant, property and equipmeni 15 2,506,836 14.5 2,459,499 15.4
- Amortization of intangible nssets 14 2,368 0.0 6,061 0.0
- Profit for the year from continued operations 7,923,777 44.1 7,130,719 44.6
Value added 17,952,507 100 15,087,20 100

Note: Statement of value added is not a required disclosure under IFRS
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FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Five yenr financinl summary - Company

For the year ended 31 December 2018

z018 2017 2016 Z015 2014

N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
Assets employed
MNons=current nssets 3.731.32!& 3.330,037 3,190,759 3,293,372 3-9!6rﬂ““
Current assels 28,153,120 25,226,941 17,237,709 1,207,106 16,705,889
Non-current linbilities (2,844,054) (2,684,508)  (2,173,00%2) (871,539) (662,667)
Current liabilities (8,468,083) (B.a72.633)  (4,197,350)  (3,280.557) (10,899.446)
MNet nuscts 20,621,907 17,419,887 14,088,116 10,330,382 9,159,776
Capital employed
Ordinary share eapital 218,501 218,591 218,591 218,591 218,591
Share premium 16,330 16,330 16,330 16,330 16,330
Retained earnings 20,386,086 17,184,960 13,823,195 10,104,461 8,924,855
Total equity 20,621,007 17,419,887 14,058,116 10,330,382 9,150,770

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'oo0)|
Turnover 10,441,821 9,068,905 6,723,452 684,50 11,425,491
Profit before income tax 4,560,484 4,783,872 5,372,478 1,799,086 1,742,996
Income tax expense (1,367,464)  (1,465,093) (1,680,225) (737,882) (512,647)
Praofit for the year 3,202,020 3,318,770 9,602,159 1,061,204 1,230,349
Taotal comprehensive ineome 3,202,020 3,315,201 3,718,734 1,179,606 1,230,349
Per shore data
Earnings per share (Naira) 7.2 7.59 B.45 2.43 2.81
Net nssets per share (Naira) 47.17 49.85 72.16 23.65 20.95

Earnings per share (EPS) Is ealculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period,

Net agsets por share is caleulated by dividing net assets of the company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period,

Note: Five year financial summary is not a required disclosure under IFRS
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FRIGOGLASS INDUSTRIES (NIGERIA) LIMITED

Five year financial summary = Group

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Assets employed
Non-current assets
Current assets
MNon-current liabilities

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo
19,524,492 13,311,405 11,937,899 13,182,608 11,742,506

51,267,751 45,778,410 37,370,630 25,265,481 23,373,371
(5.572,797) (6,678,056)  (6,801,712)  (4937477)  (3,964,117)

Current liabilities (16,705,280)  (11,5B82.072)  (B,619,055)  (7328.414)  (7,692,479)
Net nssets 48,514,166 40,820,687 33,707,763 206,182,108 23,358,271
Capital employed
Ordinary share capital 218,501 218,591 218,591 218,501 218,591
Share premium 16,330 16,330 16,430 16,330 16,330
Other reserves 2,429,942 2,429,942 2,429,942 2,429,942 2,429,942
Retalned earnings 34,567,630 28,591,873 22,959,019 16,816,554 15,896,450
Non controlling interest 11,281,673 9,572,951 8,173,880 6,700,781 4,796,958
Totnl equity 8,514,166 0,820,68 6z 26,182,108 23,358,271
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'ooo N'aon
Turnover 36,702,836 31,255,164 25,814,644 21,637,727 27,958,370
Profit before income tax 11,426,617 10,336,411 10,476,246 4,741,242 4,977,844
Income tax expense (3,502,840) (3,204,691)  (3,096,086) (1.861,550)  (1,463,084)|
Profit for the year 7,023,776 7,130,719 7,380,160 2,879,601 1,514,760
Total comprehensive income 7,923,777 7,173,122 7,380,160 :.872‘621 'ilﬁ'ﬁazf’“
Per share dota
Earnings per share (Maira) 18.12 16.01 16.88 6.50 8.04
Net azgets per ahare (Naira) 110.97 93.39 77.31 50.80 53.43|

Earnings per share (EPS) is caleulnted by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting perioad,

Net nssets per share is ealeulated by dividing net assets of the company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

Nate: Five year financial summary iz not a required disclogure under IFRS
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